
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Friday, 26 March 2021 
2.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Online via Zoom 
 
 



 

 

 
Fire Commission 
26 March 2021 

 

There will be a meeting of the Fire Commission at 2.00 pm on Friday, 26 March 2021 Online via 
Zoom. 
 
 

Political Group meetings: 
The group meetings will take place in advance of the meeting. Please contact your political group as 
outlined below for further details. 
 

Apologies: 
Please notify your political group office (see contact telephone numbers below) if you are unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
Conservative: Group Office: 020 7664 3223    email:    lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk   
Labour:  Group Office: 020 7664 3263     email:   labgp@local.gov.uk  
Liberal Democrat: Group Office: 020 7664 3235    email:    libdem@local.gov.uk 
Independent:  Group Office: 020 7664 3224    email:    independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk  
 
 

 

LGA Contact:  
Jonathan Bryant 
Jonathan.Bryant@local.gov.uk - 07464652746 
 

Carers’ Allowance  
As part of the LGA Members’ Allowances Scheme a Carer’s Allowance of £9.00 per hour or £10.55  
if receiving London living wage is available to cover the cost of dependants (i.e. children, elderly 
people or people with disabilities) incurred as a result of attending this meeting. 
 

Social Media 
The LGA is committed to using social media in a co-ordinated and sensible way, as part of a 
strategic approach to communications, to help enhance the reputation of local government, 
improvement engagement with different elements of the community and drive efficiency. Please feel 
free to use social media during this meeting. However, you are requested not to use social media 
during any confidential items. 
 

The twitter hashtag for this meeting is #lgafire 
 

mailto:lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk
mailto:labgp@local.gov.uk
mailto:libdem@local.gov.uk
mailto:independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk


 

 

 
 

 

Fire Commission – Membership 2020/2021 
 
Councillor Authority 

  
Conservative  
Cllr John Chatterley Bedfordshire Combined Fire Authority 

Cllr Tina McKenzie-Boyle Royal Berkshire Fire Authority 
Cllr Lesley Clarke OBE Buckinghamshire and Milton Keynes Fire 

Authority 
Cllr Kevin Reynolds Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fire 

Authority 
Cllr Kevin Buttery Derbyshire Fire & Rescue Service 

Cllr Sara Randall Johnson Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Authority 

Cllr Rebecca Knox Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service 

Cllr Carol Theobald East Sussex Fire Authority 
Mr Roger Hirst Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner for 

Essex 
Cllr David Norman MBE Gloucestershire County Council 

Cllr Christopher Carter Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
Cllr Roger Phillips Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue 

Authority 
Cllr Terry Hone Hertfordshire County Council 

Cllr John Briggs Humberside Fire Authority 
Cllr Dave Stewart Isle of Wight Council 

Cllr Nick Chard Kent and Medway Fire and Rescue Authority 
Cllr Stuart Tranter Kent and Medway Fire and Rescue Authority 

Cllr Maggie Wright Leicester, Leicestershire & Rutland Combined 
Fire Authority 

Cllr Nick Worth Lincolnshire County Council 
Cllr Margaret Dewsbury Norfolk County Council 

Cllr John Riddle OBE Northumberland Council 
Cllr Judith Heathcoat Oxfordshire County Council 

Cllr Eric Carter Shropshire and Wrekin Fire Authority 
Cllr Richard Rout Suffolk County Council 
Cllr Denise Turner-Stewart Surrey County Council 

Cllr Andy Crump Warwickshire County Council 
Cllr Peter Hogarth MBE West Midlands Fire and Rescue Authority 

Cllr Duncan Crow West Sussex County Council 
Cllr Peter Harrand West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority 

Cllr Colin Spence (Balancing 
Member) 

Suffolk County Council 

Cllr Rachel Bailey (Balancing 
Member) 

Cheshire Fire Authority 

Cllr Linda Taylor (Balancing 
Member) 

Cornwall Council 

Cllr Mark Healey MBE 
(Balancing Member) 

Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Authority 

Cllr David Cannon (Balancing 
Member) 

Royal Berkshire Fire Authority 

Cllr Richard Bell (Balancing County Durham and Darlington Fire & Rescue 



 

 

Member) Authority 

Cllr Lynn Hall (Balancing 
Member) 

Cleveland Fire Authority 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Nicolas Barlow West Midlands Fire and Rescue Authority 
  
Labour  
Cllr Brenda Massey Avon Fire Authority 

Cllr Bob Rudd Cheshire Fire & Rescue Service 
Cllr Paul Kirton Cleveland Fire Authority 

Cllr Byron Quayle Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service 
Cllr John Robinson JP County Durham and Darlington Fire & Rescue 

Authority 
Dr Fiona Twycross Greater London Authority 

Cllr Frank De Molfetta Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 
Cllr Nikki Hennessy Lancashire Combined Fire Authority 

Cllr Les Byrom CBE Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority 
Cllr Brian Kenny Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority 
Cllr Jan Curtice Mid and West Wales Fire Authority 

Cllr Michael Payne Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham Fire 
and Rescue Authority 

Cllr Steve Marshall-Clarke 
(Balancing Member) 

Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority 

Cllr James Roberts (Balancing 
Member) 

Merseyside Fire and Rescue Authority 

Cllr Colleen Atkins MBE 
(Balancing Member) 

Bedfordshire Fire & Rescue Service 

Cllr Tudor Davies South Wales Fire Authority 
Cllr Robert Taylor South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority 

Cllr Tony Damms South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
Cllr Tony Taylor Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Authority 

Cllr Greg Brackenridge West Midlands Fire and Rescue Authority 
Cllr Zafar Iqbal MBE JP West Midlands Fire and Rescue Authority 

Cllr Darren O'Donovan West Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
Cllr Leigh Redman (Balancing 
Member) 

Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Authority 

Cllr Shaun O'Neill (Balancing 
Member) 

Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue Authority 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Jean O'Donnell Cleveland Fire Authority 
  
Liberal Democrat  
Cllr Rob Nolan Cornwall Council 

Cllr Janet Willis Cumbria County Council 
Cllr Simon Coles Somerset County Council 

Cllr Roger Price Hampshire Fire and Rescue Authority 
Cllr Keith Aspden (Balancing 
Member) 

North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Service 

Cllr Fran Oborski MBE 
(Balancing Member) 

Hereford and Worcester Fire and Rescue 
Authority 

Cllr Ruth Skelton (Balancing 
Member) 

Derbyshire Fire and Rescue Authority 



 

 

Cllr Jayne McCoy (Balancing 
Member) 

Sutton London Borough Council 

Cllr David Wood (Balancing 
Member) 

Suffolk County Council 

Cllr Carolyn Lambert (Balancing 
Member) 

East Sussex Fire Authority 

Cllr Rowland Rees-Evans 
(Balancing Member) 

Mid and West Wales Fire Authority 

Cllr Steven Lambert (Balancing 
Member) 

Buckinghamshire and Milton Keynes Fire 
Authority 

  

  
Independent  
Cllr Ian Stephens (Chair) Isle of Wight Council 

Cllr Peter Lewis MBE North Wales Fire Authority 
Cllr Cleo Lake (Balancing 
Member) 

Avon Fire & Rescue Authority 

Cllr Jason Zadrozny (Balancing 
Member) 

Ashfield District Council 

Cllr Adam Brook (Balancing 
Member) 

Cleveland Fire Authority 

Cllr Philip Barrett (Balancing 
Member) 

North Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Authority 

Cllr Frank Biederman (Balancing 
Member) 

Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue 
Authority 

Cllr Luke Frost (Balancing 
Member) 

Cleveland Fire Authority 

Cllr Barbara Jefferson JP 
(Balancing Member) 

Humberside Fire Authority 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Bob Jones MBE Dorset and Wiltshire Fire and Rescue Service 



 

 

 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 

Fire Commission 
 
Friday 26 March 2021 
 
2.00 pm 
 
Online via Zoom 
 

 
 

 Item Page  
 

1.   Welcome and apologies for absence 
 

  

2.   Police & Crime Commissioner Review 
 

1 - 6  

 Minister for Building Safety & Communities, Lord 
Greenhalgh, to attend 
 

  

 
 
 Date of Next Meeting: Friday, 11 June 2021, 11.00 am, online via Zoom 
 



 

 

Fire Commission 

26 March 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Police and Crime Commissioner Review 

 

Purpose of report 

For discussion. 

 

Summary 

The Minister for Building Safety & Communities, Lord Greenhalgh, will be attending the 

meeting to outline the Government’s proposals following the conclusion of Part 1 of the 

Police and Crime Commissioner Review announced in July 2020. Following the Review, the 

Home Office have announced they will be consulting on proposals to strengthen the 

accountability of Fire and Rescue Services.  

 

Is this report confidential? Yes ☐ No ☒ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Lucy Ellender 

Position:   Senior Adviser 

Phone no:   020 7664 3321  

Email:    lucy.ellender@local.gov.uk 

  

Recommendation 

Members are asked to discuss the conclusions from Part 1 of the Government’s Police 

and Crime Commissioner Review.  

Actions 

The discussion at Fire Commission will be used to inform Fire Services Management 

Committee’s consideration of next steps at their meeting in May.  

Page 1

Agenda Item 2

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Fire Commission 

26 March 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

Police and Crime Commissioner Review 

Background 

1. The Government have now announced their findings from Part 1 of the Police and Crime 

Commissioner (PCC) Review. The review was initially announced in July 2020 when the 

Government said that they would be undertaking an internal review on the role of PCCs. 

The review was undertaken to fulfil the Government’s manifesto commitment to 

“strengthen the accountability of elected Police and Crime Commissioners and expand 

their role”.  

 

2. The review is in two parts. Part 1 has looked at changes to the role which include 

strengthening accountability and resilience, identifying and sharing good practice and 

examining the relationship between PCCs and Chief Constables. The Government also 

set out that Part 1 of the review would enable them to set out their long-term ambitions 

on fire governance. Part 2 of the review will take place after the May PCC elections and 

will look at further ways to strengthen and expand the role of PCCs, focusing on longer-

term reforms. The LGA fed into Part 1 of the review on behalf of the Fire Services 

Management Committee and the Safer and Stronger Communities Board. 

 

3. On 16 March the Home Secretary announced the findings from Part 1 of the review. The 

full Written Ministerial Statement can be found on the Parliament website: 

https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2021-03-

16/hcws849  

Issues 

4. There are a range of issues that Part 1 of the review touches on, including the role of 

PCCs, Police and Crime Panels and other organisations, fire governance, and mayoral 

devolution. 

Police and Crime Commissioner proposals 

5. The review concluded that further work was needed to explain the role of PCCs and be 

more transparent with the public on their record on crime to enhance their accountability. 

The government has announced:  

 

5.1. PCCs will be required to provide a narrative on their force’s performance against 

Government’s crime measures and Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary 

and Fire and Rescue Service’s (HMICFRS) performance reports. 

5.2. They will change the voting system for PCCs to first past the post. 

5.3. The Home Office will undertake work in relation to the performance management 

of Chief Constables. 

5.4. The Home Office will consult on potential changes to the Policing Protocol Order 

2011 to provide a “brighter-line” on the boundaries of operational independence 

and reflect the changes between the parties subject to the protocol (the Home 

Page 2

Agenda Item 2

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2021-03-16/hcws849
https://questions-statements.parliament.uk/written-statements/detail/2021-03-16/hcws849


 

 

Fire Commission 

26 March 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

Secretary, PCCs, Chief Constables and Police and Crime Panels) that have 

occurred since it was initially written.   

5.5. That Section 38 of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 should 

be amended to make the Chief Constable dismissal process more rigorous and 

transparent. 

5.6. The recommendations from HMICFRS in their “Leading Lights” report on the 

senior recruitment process should be addressed. 

5.7. A good governance training package for Police and Crime Panels will be 

developed in partnership with the LGA. 

5.8. The role of the Independent Office of Police Complaints and their handling of 

complaints made about PCCs and their deputies will be looked at in Part 2 of the 

Review.  

5.9. The Association of Police and Crime Commissioners (APCC) should work with the 

College of Policing to build on the policing Knowledge Hub. 

5.10. The Home Office and APCC will develop non-statutory guidance on the core 

element of the PCC role and that the APCC should also develop an induction 

programme for PCCs. 

5.11. The Home Office will bring forward legislation to mandate each PCC to have a 

Deputy.  

5.12. The Home Office will consult on giving PCCs a General Power of Competence in 

Part 2 of the Review. 

Fire Governance 

6. In their announcements on fire governance, the Government outlined that they would be 

undertaking further work after the May elections, including launching a consultative 

White Paper on fire reform. The White Paper is expected to outline their proposals 

around reform in more detail. It is anticipated that the key areas of People, 

Professionalism and Governance will be at the centre of future work. We await further 

detail of what the White Paper will contain. The key announcements from the Home 

Secretary related to fire were: 

 

6.1. The Government will be consulting on whether to mandate the transfer of fire 

governance to Police, Fire and Crime Commissioners (PFCC). They have outlined 

that this would be where boundaries are coterminous, unless there is an option to 

transfer governance to a directly elected Mayor.  

6.2. There will also be consultation on how to address coterminosity issues, particularly 

within the South West. 

6.3. The Government will be legislating to create operational independence for Chief Fire 

Officer and to ensure that there is clear separation between strategic and 

operational planning for fire and rescue. 

6.4. There will also be consideration to options to clarify the legal entities within the 

PFCC model. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Fire Commission 

26 March 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

7. Mayoral devolution is also a part of the Government’s announcement. The Government 

outlined that the review has confirmed their view that the joining up of “public safety 

functions under a combined authority mayor has the potential to offer wider levers to 

prevent crime.”  

LGA Position 

8. The LGA believes that local areas are best placed to determine how they should be 

governed, and we do not believe that there should be mandatory transfers of fire 

governance, either to PCCs or to Mayors. What works for a local area should be 

determined by that area, and locally supported change will help to ensure that the 

process is seen to be robust and less open to challenge. There is already legislation in 

place to allow PCCs to take on fire governance where there is a local case that it is in the 

interests of economy, efficiency and effectiveness or public safety. The LGA believes 

there is no pressing need to change this position. 

 

9. We do not feel that further legislative change is needed to introduce operational 

independence for Chief Fire Officers, and believe the respective roles of the Chief Fire 

Officers and Fire and Rescue Authorities are clear. Fire and rescue authorities hold the 

legal responsibility for services, including the assets and budgets as well as being the 

employer. Chief Fire Officers provide their professional expertise to FRAs to ensure that 

FRA members can make strategic decisions, and then implement these decisions in the 

day to day management of the service, in a similar way to council Chief Executives. 

 

10. Police and Crime Panel’s (PCPs) role was also examined within the LGA’s submission 

as the key scrutiny and accountability mechanism for the PCC. There was sometimes a 

lack of understanding of the breadth of the role of PCPs. The Home Office could do more 

to acknowledge the role of panels and strengthen them. 

Questions for discussion 

11. The Minister will be attending the meeting to outline his proposals. Issues members may 

wish to consider ahead of the Fire Commission meeting to help inform the discussion 

with the Minister could include:  

 

11.1. Whether members would only prefer to see locally agreed transfers of governance 

either to Mayors or PCCs (as is broadly the case now)?  

11.2. Should there be a requirement for a business case to be put forward to trigger any 

mandatory transfer of governance?  

11.3. If there should be, what would the business case for the transfer have to 

demonstrate? For example, would the tests of efficiency, effectiveness, economy 

or public safety meet all the issues you feel should be considered? 

11.4. The Government has particularly highlighted issues around coterminosity in their 

announcements, and has said it will consult on changing fire and rescue service 

boundaries in the South West so they match police boundaries. Will this cause 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Fire Commission 

26 March 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

difficulties for fire and rescue services if for example the Dorset and Wiltshire 

service were to be split into two?  

11.5. A number of fire and rescue services are currently based in their county council. 

What impact would the transfer of fire and rescue services out of those county 

councils have on their services? 

11.6. Given the focus on governance in the government’s proposals should HMICFRS’s 

inspection regime consider governance and the role of Police, Fire and Crime 

Commissioners? 

11.7. The proposals set out the Government’s support for operational independence. 

How does the current split between operational and strategic decision-making 

work within your FRA? How do schemes of delegation support this? Would there 

be a difference between the operational independence of Chief Constables and 

Chief Fire Officers (would the Policing Protocol be extended for example to cover 

fire)?  

11.8. What further training support do you feel Police and Crime Panels or Police, Fire 

and Crime Panels would benefit from?   

Implications for Wales 

12. Fire and rescue related policy is a devolved matter, and any changes in the role of Welsh 

PCCs would have to be agreed by the Welsh Government. The Welsh Local 

Government Association leads on lobbying around issues for Welsh Fire and Rescue 

Authorities. 

Financial Implications 

13. There are no financial implications for the LGA arising from this report. 

Next steps 

14. The discussion at Fire Commission will inform the work that the LGA undertakes after 

the White Paper is published. The FSMC will discuss next steps at their next meeting in 

May. 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk



	Agenda
	2 Police & Crime Commissioner Review

